
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes from the February 21, 2023 Landmarks Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
  
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS

 4.a. Site Visit Committee -721 Park Avenue
  
5. CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS

 5.a. COA-2023-02 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) to
renovate the exterior of the residential structure and detached garage located at 721 Park
Avenue

 Attachment

 5.b. COA-2022-28 Review and consideration of an extension of a  Certificate of
Appropriateness (COA) to renovate the institutional structure located at 735 College Street

 Attachment

 5.c. COA-2023-03 Review and consideration of  a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA)  to
remove the detached garages at 732 Church Street and 749 College Street.

 Attachment
  
6. REPORT ON STAFF ACTIVITIES

 6.a. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness 

 6.b. Historic Property Owner Letters
  
7. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Tuesday, March 21, 2023

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Landmarks Commission
Meeting Agenda - March 21, 2023

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1847082/2-21-23_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1847862/COA-2023-02__721_Park_Avenue__Exterior_Renovations__Garage__Porch__and_Windows_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1847876/COA-2022-28__735_College_St__Library_Renovation_-Impact_Beloit_Hub_Amendment.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1849082/COA-2023-03__749_College_Street___732_Church_Street__detached_garage_removal.pdf


 Landmarks Commission
Meeting Agenda - March 21, 2023

2



 

___________________________ 
Celestino Ruffini, Chairperson  
Landmarks Commission 

 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Tuesday February 21 2023, 7:00 PM 

The Fourth Floor Conference Room, 100 State Street 
 Beloit, WI 53511 

1. Roll Call 
Chairperson Ruffini called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 

 Commissioners McDaniel, Doig, Beckman, Carter, Gallagher, Langley and Councilor 
Blakeley were present. Commissioner Carlson and Carter were absent.  

 

2. Minutes of the November 15, 2022 Meeting 
Councilor Blakeley moved to approve the draft minutes. Commissioner McDaniel seconded 
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. (6-0)  

 

3. Public Comments (None) 
 

4. Certificates of Appropriateness 
 

A. John Mansfield -Certificate of Appropriateness  
COA-2023-01 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) to 
replace the windows and repair tile at the commercial building at the commercial building 
located at 312 State Street.  

 
Ms. Rottmann read the staff report and recommendations. The applicant Mr. Mansfield 
did not have any additional comments. Commissioner McDaniel asked if the tile would be 
patched or removed and replaced. Mr. Mansfield stated he planned to remove all the tile 
and replicate the same design.  Commissioner McDaniel moved to approve the Certificate 
of Appropriateness subject to the conditions recommended by staff. Commissioner Doig 
seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. (6-0) 

 

5. Reports on Staff Activates  
A. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness. Zero applications had 

been approved since the previous meeting.  
B. Five letters when out to new historic property owners. 
C. 2022 Annual Report on activities.  

 
6. Adjournment 

Commissioner Doig moved to adjourn at 7:18 PM. Commissioner McDaniel seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote. (6-0) 

 

3



 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Meeting Date: March 21, 2023 
 

Agenda Item: 5. a File Number: COA-2023-02 

Applicant: CCI 
 

Owner: Beloit College Park LLC Location: 721 Park Avenue 

Existing Zoning:  R-1B, Single-Family  Existing Land Use: Vacant Single-
Family Residence  

Parcel Size: 0.19 Acre 

 

Request Overview/Background Information: 
CCI on behalf of Beloit College Park LLC, has submitted an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) to 
renovate the exterior of the residential structure and detached garage located at 721 Park Avenue. This property is 
located in the College Park Historic District. Section 32.06 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance grants the Landmarks 
Commission the authority to issue a COA prior to the alteration of structures within a Historic District. 
 

Key Issues: 
 The applicant scope of work includes: 
 Addition of a covered front porch  

o Installation of black iron railings 
o Porch posts to mimic the architectural 

feature of attic windows 
o Soffit, facia, and shingles to match 

existing structure 
 Repair and paint of existing wood siding 
 addition to the north side of the house to close in 

access. 
 Masonry and filling in the basement windows 
 In fill door on south-east and match existing 

exterior  
 
 

  

New exterior doors 
 New concrete sidewalk 
 Detached garage 

o Replace garage doors  
o Replace man door 
o Wood siding will be repaired and 

replaced 
 Replacement of windows with black aluminum 

windows  
o reglazing the attic windows and 

diamond shaped windows on the north 
side. 

 Alteration of window locations (see attached 
renderings) 

 The applicant has been staff approved for roof repairs to the house and garage.  
 The Beloit Intensive survey stated the structure at 721 Park Avenue is a Two-story plus attic late picturesque 

Queen Anne residence. It is not historically or architecturally significant but contributes to the College Park 
Historic District. A copy of the Intensive Survey Form is attached to this report. 

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance includes general review criteria to be used when 
evaluating COA applications. The COA checklist is attached. 

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance establishes Specific Review Criteria: 
(1) Architectural Details:  Architectural details, including materials, colors and textures, should be treated so 

as to make a landmark compatible with the original architectural style or character of the landmark in the 
historic district.  
The applicant is altering the existing structure but preserving the unique characteristics of the attic 
windows and siding. The proposed projects incorporate architectural details and materials that 
complement the original design.  The appearance of the property will be enhanced and have a presence 
on Park Avenue.   

 Staff believes that the proposed actions, subject to certain conditions, satisfy the standards of Section 32.06(6)(c). 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a COA to renovate the exterior of the residential 
structure and detached garage located at 721 Park Avenue, based on the standards and criteria contained in the Historic 
Preservation Ordinance and subject to the following conditions: 
 
 

1. The applicant shall install the materials that have been reviewed & approved by the Landmarks Commission. 
2. All work shall be done in a workman like manner and be consistent with the standards provided by the Secretary of 

the Interior by March 21, 2024. 
3. Any changes or additions to this COA must be reviewed and approved by staff prior to the start of any work.  
4. The applicant shall obtain all necessary building permits.  

Attachments: Photographs, Application, Intensive Survey Form, and COA Checklist. 

4



5



6



 

Reside 

 Window 

Infill Access Point  

7



 

8



 

  

 

 

 

9



 

10



 

11



 

12



   

13



14



15



16



 

17



18



19



 

20



  

 

21



CITY of BELOIT 
Neighborhood Planning Division 

100 State Street, Beloit, WI  53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST 
For property located at: 721 Park Avenue 

GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA YES NO N/A 

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use for a 

property that requires alteration for use other than for its originally 

intended purpose? 

 

X 

  

 

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character of a 

building, structure or site?  The removal or alteration of any historic 

material or distinctive architectural features should be avoided when 

possible. 

 

X 

 

 

 

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis, rather 

than trying to create an earlier or later appearance? 

X   

Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the development 

of a building over time that may have acquired significance in their own 

right? 

 

X 

  

 

Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic features, or 

examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a building, structure 

or site? 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated 

architectural features, wherever possible?  If replacement is necessary, 

the new material should match the material being replaced in 

composition, design color, texture and other visual qualities. 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods that 

will damage the surface of the historic building? 

  X 

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve 

archeological resources affected by or adjacent to any project? 

  X 

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed, does 

this design retain significant historical, architectural or cultural material 

and is the design compatible with the size, scale, color, material and 

character of the property and neighborhood? 

 

X 

  

 

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner that 

if such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the 

essential form and integrity of the building would be unimpaired? 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

22



 

23



 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

 

Meeting Date: March 21, 2023 
 

Agenda Item: 5. b. File Number: COA-2022-28 

Applicant: Angus-Young & Associates 
 

Owner: Beloit College Board of 
Trustees 

Location: 735 College Street 

Existing Zoning: PLI, Public Lands & 
Institutions 

Existing Land Use: College Library Parcel Size: 1.08 Acre 

 

Request Overview/Background Information: 

Angus-Young & Associates on behalf of the Beloit College Board of Trustees. has submitted an extension of a Certificate 
of Appropriateness (COA) to renovate the institutional structure located at 735 College Street. This property is located in 
the College Park Historic District. Section 32.06 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance grants the Landmarks Commission 
the authority to issue a COA prior to the alteration of structures within a Historic District. 
 

 The applicant’s proposed project was approved at the October 18, 2022 meeting. Soon after the meeting it was 
realized the project would not be completed within a year, the applicant is requesting an extension until December 
of 2024.  

 The scope of work includes building envelope improvements which consist of window removal and replacement, 
brickwork and tuckpointing, new access points, an outdoor seating area, landscaping, and concrete work. The 
applicant has also requested the demolition of structures, this request will be addressed separate. 

 The Beloit Intensive survey states the structure located at 735 College Street is a three-story contemporary library 
structure. This structure is not architecturally significant but does contribute to the district. A copy of the Intensive 
Survey Form is attached to this report. 

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance includes general review criteria to be used when 
evaluating COA applications. The COA checklist is attached. 

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance establishes Specific Review Criteria: 
 (9) Contemporary Design: Contemporary design for alterations and additional to existing properties shall not 

be discouraged when they do not destroy or cover over significant historical, architectural or cultural 
materials and such design is compatible with the size, scale, color, materials, and character of the 
property neighborhood design. 

 Per new state of Wisconsin law “In the repair or replacement of a property that is designated as a historic 
landmark or included within a historic district or neighborhood conservation district under this paragraph, a city 
shall allow an owner to use materials that are similar in design, color, scale, architectural appearance, and other 
visual qualities” Wis. Stat. 62.23(7)(em)(2m) 

 Staff believes that the proposed actions, subject to certain conditions, satisfy the standards of Section 32.06(6)(c). 
 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of an extension of a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) to renovate the institutional structure located at 735 College Street, based on the standards and criteria contained 
in the Historic Preservation Ordinance and subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The applicant shall install the materials that have been reviewed & approved by the Landmarks Commission. 
2. All work shall be done in a workman like manner and be consistent with the standards provided by the Secretary of 

the Interior by December 31, 2024. 
3. Any changes or additions to this COA must be reviewed and approved by staff prior to the start of any work.  
4. The applicant shall obtain all necessary building permits.  

Attachments: Extension, Map, Site Plans, Photographs, Application, Intensive Survey Form, and COA Checklist 

24



LOCATION MAP  

     

25



   

26



  

   

27



28



 

 

29



 

 

30



  

31



              
32



    
33



 

34



Planning and Building Services Division 
100 State Street, Beloit, WI  53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609 

 
 

For property located at: 735 College 

   GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA 
YES NO N/A 

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use for a property that 

requires alteration for use other than for its originally intended purpose? 

 

X 

  

 

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, 

structure or site?  The removal or alteration of any historic material or distinctive 

architectural features should be avoided when possible. 

 

X 

  

    

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis, rather than trying to 

create an earlier or later appearance? 

 X  

Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the development of a building 

over time that may have acquired significance in their own right?  

 

X 

  

 

Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic features, or examples of 

skilled craftsmanship that characterize a building, structure or site? 

 

X 

  

 

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated architectural features, 

wherever possible?  If replacement is necessary, the new material should match the 

material being replaced in composition, design color, texture and other visual 

qualities.   

 

X 

 

 

 

 

   

 

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage 

the surface of the historic building?   

X   

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve archeological 

resources affected by or adjacent to any project? 

  X 

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed, does this design 

retain significant historical, architectural or cultural material and is the design 

compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character of the property and 

neighborhood?  

 

X 

 

 

 

 

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner that if such 

additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential form and 

integrity of the building would be unimpaired? 

 

X 

  

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST 

35



 

36



 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: March 21, 2023 
 

Agenda Item: 5. c. File Number: COA-2023-03 

Applicant: Angus-Young & 
Associates 
 

Owner: Beloit College Board of 
Trustees 

Existing Zoning: PLI, Public Lands 
& Institutions 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Angus-Young & Associates on behalf of the Beloit College Board of Trustees has submitted an application to 
remove the detached garages at 732 Church Street and 749 College Street. These properties are located in 
the College Park Historic District. Section 32.06 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance grants the Landmarks 
Commission the authority to issue a COA prior to the alteration of structures within a Historic District. 
 
 
 

 
Address: 

749 College Street 732 Church Street 
Feminist Collective 

Existing Land Use: Vacant facility maintenance Student Housing 

Parcel Size: 0.27 0.27 
Applicant request: Removal of detached garage Removal of detached garage 
Intensive Survey: Two story white brick Colonial Revival  Architecturally significant Queen Ann  

Contributing to the District Pivotal to the District 

 
Key Issues: 

 The applicant is renovating the Morse Library and as a part of the library renovation project, they would 
like to remove two garages surrounding the library to accommodate additional parking and green 
space.   

 The Beloit Intensive Surveys state one of the homes is contributing to the district and one is pivotal. 
Copies of Intensive Survey Forms are attached to this report. 

 Section 32.07(2) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance includes review standards to be used when 
evaluating COA applications for demolitions. The attached COA Checklist evaluates this application 
against these criteria. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to 
application to remove the detached garages at 732 Church Street and 749 College Street., based on the 
standards and criteria contained in the Historic Preservation Ordinance, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. All portions of the structure, including the foundation and all miscellaneous debris, shall be removed 
from the premises with the footprint restored to grass or paved surface by December 31, 2024. 

2. Any changes or additions to this COA must be reviewed and approved by staff prior to the start of any 
work.  

3. The applicant’s contractor shall obtain a Demolition Permit from the City prior to beginning work. 
 

Attachments: Map, Photos, Removal Plan, Application, Intensive Survey Form, and COA Checklist. 
 
 

37



Location Map 
 

 
 
 

Accessory Structure 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 
 

749 College Street Detached Garage 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



732 Church Street Detached Garage 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

40



 

41



 
 
 

 

42



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

43



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



 
 

 
 

 

45



CITY of BELOIT 
Planning and Building Services Division 

100 State Street, Beloit, WI  53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609 

 
 

 
For properties located at: 732 Church Street and 749 College Street  
 

  DEMOLITION REVIEW STANDARDS 
YES NO N/A 

Whether the historic building is of such architectural or historic 
significance that demolition would be detrimental to the public interest 
and contrary to the general welfare of the people of the City and the 
State 

  
 

X 

 
 

The removal of the detached garages will improve the esthetic and safety of this portion of the 
college campus.  

Whether an historic building which has not been designated as an 
historic landmark, contributes to the distinctive architectural or 
historic character of the historic district as a whole and, therefore, 
should be preserved for the benefit of the people of the City and the 
State 

 
 

 
X 

 
 
 

The detached garages do not reflect the style or characteristics of the home they are 
associated with or the district. 

Whether demolition of the historic building would be contrary to the 
purpose and intent of this chapter as set forth in Section 32.01 and to 
the objectives of the historic preservation plan for the applicable 
district as adopted by the City Council 

 
 
 

 
X 

 

Whether the historic building is of such old and unusual or 
uncommon design, texture, and/or material that it could not be 
reproduced or be reproduced only with great difficulty and/or 
expense 

 
 

 
X 
 

 
 

Whether retention of the historic building would promote the general 
welfare of the people of the City and the State by encouraging study 
of American history, architecture, and design or by developing an 
understanding of American culture and heritage 

 
 
 

 
X 

 
 

Whether any hardship or difficulty claimed by the owner is self-
created or the result of the owner’s failure to maintain the property in 
good repair 

 
 

 
X 
 

 
 
 

Whether any new structure proposed to be constructed or any change 
in use proposed to be made is compatible with nearby historic 
buildings or the historic district in which the subject property is 
located 

 
 

X 

  

The applicant intends to construct parking, walking paths, and green space which is 
compatible with the adjacent college campus land use. 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST 
 

46



 

47


	Landmarks Commission Agenda
	2023-1330 - Attachment 
	2023-1336 - Attachment
	2023-1337 - Attachment
	2023-1338 - Attachment

